
June 11, 2013 
 

APPROVED on 6/25/13 
 

 Proceedings of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners in and for the County 
of Menominee and the State of Michigan were held in the Meyer Township Hall, Hermansville, 
Michigan. 
 
 Chairman Meintz called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
 A call of the roll indicated that the following Commissioners were present/absent: 
 

Present: Coms. Furlong, Hafeman, Krienke, Lang, Meintz, Nelson, Piche, and Schei.   
 
 Absent: Com. Plutchak (excused) 
  
 Moved by Com. Hafeman, seconded by Com. Piche to approve the agenda.  Motion was 
approved 8-0. 
 
 Com. Meintz stated that the previous minutes would need to be corrected under Public 
Comment to show that Stephanie Bruno is a Program Instructor, and not a MSU Educator. 
 

Moved by Com. Furlong, seconded by Com. Hafeman to approve the minutes from the 
May 28, 2013 Regular County Board Meeting as amended.  Motion was approved 8-0. 

 
 Public Comment:  None. 
 
 Presentations:  None. 
 
 Department Head/Elected Officials Reports:   

- Diane Lesperance, Treasurer – She explained that she spoke with the Superintendent 
of Stephenson Public Schools.  The school district collected too much in taxes last 
year.  The school district passed a debt reduction millage in 2000 that was for a 
period of 12 years, or less if the debt was retired.  The debt was retired in 2011 but 
the district still collected the taxes in 2012.  Between the district, their attorney and 
the State of Michigan they have resolved this issue by reducing the amount the 
school district residents will pay on the state required 6 mills to 3.8 mills for this 
year. 

 
Moved by Com. Hafeman, seconded by Com. Furlong to approve Resolution 2013-11 ~ 

Menominee County 9-1-1 Surcharge.  Motion was approved 8-0.  (Attachment A) 
 
Moved by Com. Furlong, seconded by Com. Hafeman to approve the requested holiday 

dates from the Veterans’ Council of Menominee, to ring the Courthouse Bell.  (Memorial Day, 
Flag Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Sept. 11th, Veterans Day).  Discussion ensued.  Com. 
Krienke stated he does not know why Labor Day is always celebrated in hallowed days of our 
country’s history.  Motion was approved 7-1.  Com. Krienke voted nay. 

 



Moved by Com. Furlong, seconded by Com. Hafeman to approve payment of 
Commissioner Per Diems and expenses as recently submitted.  Motion was approved 8-0. 

 
Moved by Com. Furlong, seconded by Com. Schei to approve miscellaneous bills as paid 

on May 16 & 23, 2013 in the total amount of $157,826.34.  Motion was approved 8-0. 
 
Moved by Com. Schei, seconded by Com. Piche to place miscellaneous 

boards/committees/commission reports on file in the office of the County Clerk.  Motion was 
approved 8-0. 

 
New Business (discussion only) 
 
Personnel Items:   

a. None 
 

Building and Grounds/Parks Items:   
a. Cedarville Township – Development of Fox Park. – Lin Peterson, Cedarville 

Township Supervisor, addressed the County Board in regards to what the township 
has been doing to upgrade Fox Park.  In the 1990’s the County turned over Fox Park 
to Cedarville Township, but placed a reversionary clause in the deed that stated 
“Conditioned that said premises shall not be used for anything other than a public 
park.  If said premises ceases to be used as a public park, it shall revert back to 
Menominee County”.  The township would like the county to remove this clause so 
that they can sell two lots off of the south end of the park to pay for future upgrades 
to the park.  Lin has met with Brian Bousley and Prosecuting Attorney Dan Hass in 
regards to this.  Before the township will proceed with their attorney, and a surveyor 
they would like to know that the County Board is in favor of this.  Lin explained 
there is not much for economic development in Cedarville Township and upgrading 
this park would really help the township in the long run.  Com. Lang stated that we 
would be very short sited not to go along with Cedarville Township on this.  Lin 
explained that the State of Michigan would be providing them with some matching 
grants for a number of these upgrades.  Com. Nelson asked if those two lots would be 
the only ones to have the clause removed and if the rest of the park would remain 
intact with the reversionary clause.  Com. Schei agrees with only having the clause 
removed on the two lots.  Com. Hafeman likes the idea of upgrading the park.  The 
consensus of the board is to move this item forward for approval removing the 
reversionary clause only from the 2 lots the township wishes to sell.  Dan Hass will 
also have to look into this a little more to make sure there are no other restrictions 
that would prohibit this from happening. 

b. Shakey Lakes ~ Black top at new Bath House. – Com. Hafeman asked how much it 
will cost to black top.  Brian Bousley stated that if we go out for sealed bids it will 
increase the cost.  He would prefer if the board will allow him to speak with different 
contractors and we can get a better price.  Com. Nelson asked how many square feet 
would need to be black topped.  Com. Hafeman asked if the park system has the 
money for this.  Brian stated the parks have the money already budgeted for this.  
Com. Furlong asked why it would be cheaper to not go out for bids.  Brian explained 
that there are only two companies in the area that would do this work.  If it goes out 
for bids another company would be hiring one of the local contractors to do this 
work.  This would cause the contracted price to be higher.  Com. Hafeman asked if 
there is more prep work that needs to be done.  Com. Nelson asked if we could 
consider chip sealing it instead.  He also stated that this would probably be about 1/3 



the cost of black topping.  Com. Krienke suggested crushed limestone instead.  Com. 
Schei asked what the Parks Committee was recommending.  Brian stated that our 
bylaws allow us to contact contractors directly instead of going out for sealed bids.  
Com. Furlong asked how we would go about picking a contractor.  Brian stated that 
he and Dan Menacher would research it.  Com. Nelson asked if this is something that 
has to be done now because of the possible shortfall in money the county is facing.  
Brian explained that this is something that needs to be done because of the 
weathering and high traffic areas around the bath house will make the area a liability.  
Com. Nelson stated that he wants to know the area first for an estimate.  Com. Meintz 
suggested having the two local companies come in and measure it up and give us an 
estimate so we have a reasonable idea.  Com. Nelson asked how much was budgeted 
for it.  Brian stated $300,000 for the building and we have spent a little over 
$200,000.  Com. Meintz thinks it will be a little over $10,000 - $15,000.  The cost 
does usually go up.  Com. Schei is in favor of getting an idea on the cost.  The 
consensus of the board is to get some prices and make a decision from there. 

 
Miscellaneous Items:   

a.  None  
 

Finance Items:  
a. FY 2014 Agreement for Extension Services provided by Michigan State University 

(MSU). – Doug Brahee from MSU updated the board and answered questions that 
the commissioners had asked at the previous County Board Meeting.  He explained 
that Warren Schauer MSU Educator in Delta County will be moving his office to the 
Menominee County Annex, and this will be his home office.  Doug went through all 
of the duties that Warren will be performing.  He stated that his program delivery 
area will be the entire U.P.  He will also have some statewide responsibilities.  Com. 
Nelson asked how many days a week Warren will be in Stephenson.  Doug stated 
anywhere from 2-3 days a week.  Com. Nelson stated that was only part-time then, 
not fulltime.  Doug explained it will be the same as in every other county.  We will 
be pulling in educators from other counties as needed, just like Warren will be 
working in other counties from time to time.  Com. Nelson asked why the largest 
agricultural county in the U.P. has fewer educators than in the other counties?  Com. 
Meintz stated that he is not entirely satisfied with all the answers.  He asked what all 
these educators are doing when they are out and about.  He also wanted to know who 
was monitoring their whereabouts.  Com. Furlong commented that all of this came 
about when there were funding cuts with MSU.  He feels that MSU should be putting 
the educator in this office as much as they are in any of the other counties.  Doug 
addressed questions as to what the MOA (memorandum of agreement) pays for.  
Com. Meintz feels that we should continue discussions regarding the MOA, and 
possibly look at dropping the services with MSU.  Com. Nelson stated that he 
personally knows Warren and thinks that he will be a good person for us to have as 
an Educator.  Com. Furlong stated that we need an Educator in Menominee County, 
and we should take Doug at his word and maybe see some time sheets so we have a 
good feeling on how many days/hours a week we are being provided with services.  
The consensus of the board is to keep going forward with the MOA, but they would 
like to see verification of the work being done. 

b. DHS is requesting reconsideration of meeting fee reimbursement. – Brian explained 
the letter he received from Russell Sexton.  DHS feels that their board members are 
not volunteers and should be paid for their services.  This is contrary to the 
Menominee County Bylaws.  Com. Hafeman discussed the bylaws.  The State of 



Michigan appoints one member to the DHS Board, and Menominee County appoints 
2.  Menominee County currently appropriates DHS $9,000, which is what the board 
members are paid from.  Brian stated that he checked with Delta and Dickinson 
Counties and they both pay less than Menominee County does.  Com. Lang asked 
questions and discussed other boards and committees and asked why some are paid 
and some are not.  Com. Lang stated that we are not being consistent.  Com. Nelson 
feels that this should be looked at when we are revising our bylaws.  We need to 
obtain more information on who is being paid and who is not.  The consensus of the 
board is to review this issue when we are reviewing the bylaws. 

c. Commissioner Per Diems and expenses. – The consensus of the board is to move this 
item forward to the next meeting for approval.   

d. Miscellaneous bills as paid on June 3 & 6, 2013 in the amount of $65,454.78. – Com. 
Hafeman asked about the Title 4 funding appeal.  Brian explained that was involving 
Judge Hupy, and the State refusing to pay.  Com. Nelson explained this a little 
further.  Com. Hafeman asked about a charge to Tony’s Green Thumb for flowers.  
She asked why we are not getting flowers from Menominee County instead.  Brian 
explained how and where Mary purchases the flowers.   The consensus of the board 
is to move this item forward to the next meeting for approval.   

 
Misc. Boards/Committees/Commissions Reports: 
 The consensus of the board is to move this item forward to the next meeting for approval.   
 
 Chairman Meintz called for public comment 
 

Public Comment:   
- John Anderson – Commented about the Stephenson School District tax issue, and 

someone from there should have been at the meeting.  He is not sure where the 
MERS issue sits, but it is a bill that has to be paid.  The courthouse is older and 
outdated.   

- Dick Peterson – Commented on the Wild Rivers program and the invasive species in 
the area.  He also stated that he has been elected as director for Menominee County. 

- Diane Lesperance – Commented that she agreed with John Anderson regarding the 
Stephenson Schools. 

- Bob Desjarlais – Commented on the blacktopping at Shakey Lakes Park.  It would 
also be blacktopping a handicap camping site.  He stated that he also agrees with 
John Anderson regarding the tax issue.  Lastly he commented that if committee 
members are considered volunteers and should not get paid, then the County 
Commissioners should not be paid for those meetings either. 

- Lin Petersen – Commented on the invasive species, and there will be a meeting at the 
Cedarville Township hall.  Delta County is in the process of trying to eliminate the 
fragmities.   

- Gary Eichhorn – Commented that the board should get prices on crushed limestone 
for Shakey Lakes.  He asked how many acres are the lots that Cedarville Township is 
looking to sell.  He also stated that Action Item #1 should have figures attached to it 
if the board is going to be voting to raise our taxes. 

- Laurie Riedy – Commented about demolition of the Red Brick building was suppose 
to start on Monday, and did not. 

- Diane Lesperance – Commented that the demolition was supposed to start on 
Monday, but they may have been doing prep work.  She also stated that Menominee 
County did not have a say in how Stephenson Schools handled the tax issue. 



- Gary Eichhorn – Commented about the Extension Office.  If we have a contract for 
40 hrs/week and we are not getting that many we should stop paying. 

 
Commissioner Comment: 
- Com. Schei – Commented that Com. Hafeman attended a meeting with Rep. McBroom 
and has information for the board. 
- Com. Hafeman – Discussed the meeting with Rep. McBroom.  He spoke about MERs, 
CRF land, offering training for assessors and equalization directors in the U.P. by video 
conferencing, a land cap in place for State land purchases, phasing out of personal 
property taxes and the Pincrest Board.  She also read a certificate she was going to 
present Com. Lang with at the last meeting for his 80th Birthday. 
- Com. Lang – Commented that former Commissioner Floyd Berger passed away.  He 
also commented about an organization he belongs to in Michigan and an article that was 
written about Owen Hammerberg who was born in Daggett. 
- Com. Nelson – Commented that the Finance Committee will be meeting on June 17th at 
9:00 a.m. and he hopes Brian will have the numbers from MERS by then. 
 
Any other items members may wish to present:  None. 

 
Moved by Com. Furlong, seconded by Com. Piche to adjourn at 7:41 p.m.  Motion was 

approved 8-0. 
 
 
  
_______________________ 
Charlie Meintz, Chairman 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Marc Kleiman, County Clerk  


